
 
 

City of Baldwin City 
PO Box 86 

Baldwin City, Kansas 66006 
Council Meeting Agenda 

 

Baldwin City Community Center​  
712 Chapel St​​ ​ ​  
Baldwin City, KS 66006 

TUESDAY 
October 7th, 2025  

7:00 PM 

​ ​ ​ ​                                  
 

Hearing: RHID for Maplewood Place 
 
A.  Call to Order-Mayor Casey Simoneau 
 
B.  Approval of Agenda 
 
C.  Consent Agenda  

1.​ Minutes 9.16.2025 
2.​ Scheduled Claims List  
3.​ Liquor License Renewal-Double A Liquor 
 

D.  Public Comment: 
Members of the public are welcome to comment on items relating to City business not listed on this 
Agenda. Please stand and wait to be recognized by the Mayor. As a general practice, the comments may 
or may not be acted upon by the Council during the meeting, or Council may refer the items to staff for 
follow up. 
 
If you wish to comment on an item listed on the agenda, a sign-up sheet is provided for you to sign in and 
provide your address. You will be called on when the Agenda item of interest is under discussion by the 
Council.  
 
E.  Special Reports or Presentations ​  

Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation 
Introduce Adonus, the newest hire for the Police Department 
 

F.  Old Business 
1.​ Ordinance 1520-Maplewood RHID request 
 

G.  New Business 
1.​ Ordinance 1519-Conditional Use - 104 10th St - Commercial Kitchen 
 

H.  Council Committee Reports 
1.​ Budget and Finance - Scott Lauridsen/Cory Venable 



 
 

City of Baldwin City 
PO Box 86 

Baldwin City, Kansas 66006 
Council Meeting Agenda 

 

Baldwin City Community Center​  
712 Chapel St​​ ​ ​  
Baldwin City, KS 66006 

TUESDAY 
October 7th, 2025  

7:00 PM 

​ ​ ​ ​                                  
 

2.​ Community Development - Cory Venable/Susan Pitts 
3.​ Public Safety - Susan Pitts/Jay King 
4.​ Public Works and Utilities - Julie Constantinescu/Jay King 
5.​ Strategic Planning - Scott Lauridsen/Julie Constantinescu 
6.​ Lake Advisory Committee-Jay King/Julie Constantinescu 
7.​ Communications Policy Advisory Committee-Susan Pitts/Scott Lauridsen 

 
I.  City Administrator and Staff comments 
 
J.  Council and Mayor comments 

 
K. Executive Session 

  
L.  Adjourn 

 
City Council meets every first and third Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin Community Center.  Council work 
sessions are held the last Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin Community Center.  



City of Baldwin City 
Minutes  

Tuesday, September 16, 2025 
 Regular Council Meeting 

 
BUDGET HEARING 
 

A.​ Call to Order  
The Baldwin City Council was called to Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin City Community 
Center, 712 Chapel Street, with Mayor Casey Simoneau presiding. 
 
Present were Council Members: Susan Pitts, Cory Venable, Julie Constantinescu and Scott Lauridsen.  
  
Also, attending: Russ Harding-Interim City Administrator; Amara Packard-City Clerk; Shiloh 
Afonja-Deputy City Clerk; Shaye Downing-City Attorney; Lynn Meador-Communications Director 
and Officer Zweydoff-Police Department.   

 
B.​ Approval of Agenda  

Scott Lauridsen moved and Julie Constantinescu seconded to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
carried with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.  

 
C.​ Consent Agenda  

Scott Lauridsen moved and Cory Venable seconded to approve the consent agenda as presented.  
Motion carried with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.    
 
1.  Minutes - 9.02.25 
2.  Scheduled Claims List 
3.  Special Event-Family Church-Family event 
4.  Special Event-Baker University-Marching Band Competition 

 
D.​ Public Comment  

 

E.​ Special Reports or Presentations        
  

F.​ Old Business  
1.​ Black Jack 

The city has been working with the county for several months about entering into a partnership 
with joint ownership, 50/50 split. If this were to happen, both entities would come up with an 
advisory board that would work out short- and long- term park developments, maintenance and 
capital projects, programming and public use, strategic planning and visioning, signage, marketing, 
and city and county recognition. The purchase price of Black Jack is $257,000.00, the county 
would pay $250,000.00 and the city would pay $7,000.00.     



Marta Jardon-1677 N 400 Rd.-would like to hear some of the background from Caitlyn, and would 
like to hear more about the administrative committee and what that would look like.  
Mayor Simoneau said that the board would be the governing body on behalf of the city governing 
body and county governing body. It would consist of half appointed from the city governing body, 
and half appointed by the county. There may be an appointment of a council member, but mainly 
community members.  
This agreement will go before the county commission on September 24th. Both the city council 
and county commission must approve for this to be a binding contract. The city will continue the 
upkeep of the property.   
Scott Lauridsen moved and Susan Pitts seconded to approve the financing agreement for the 
acquisition of the Black Jack Battlefield property as presented. Motion carried with a vote of 4 yes 
and 0 no.   
Scott Lauridsen moved to approve the joint ownership agreement of the Black Jack Battlefield 
property contingent on the county passing their agreement as well, and also moved to give the 
mayor signing authority on both agreements.   
Scott Lauridsen amended his open motion to: 
Scott Lauridsen moved to approve and Cory Venable seconded the notification of Blackjack that 
we are enacting our right to purchase the property under the lease agreement, as stated in the lease 
agreement, along with giving the mayor the authority to sign on behalf of the city.    
 

G.​ New Business        
 

H.​ Committee Reports 
1.​ Budget and Finance - Scott Lauridsen/Cory Venable     

Next meeting 9/19/2025 at 7:30am, second floor of City Hall 
  

2.​ Community Development - Cory Venable/Susan Pitts     
Next meeting will be 9/22/2025 at 4:00pm, second floor of City Hall 

 
3.​ Public Safety - Susan Pitts/Jay King   

Next meeting will be TBD at 4:00pm, second floor of City Hall 
 

4.​ Public Works and Utilities - Julie Constantinescu/Jay King                                                                                     
New Substation: 
●​ The transformer arrived and was set on September 9th. 
●​ Mid States and Carpenter Construction will be on site to work on conduit placement and 

will be pouring concrete pad. 
●​ Building Steel to be delivered on September 19th. 
●​ Carpenter Construction is scheduled to return on the 22nd to start the building 

construction. 
●​ Pat continues to work with suppliers on wire and line component bids. 

 



●​ The outage that occurred earlier in the month was due to a raccoon visiting the Newton 
substation.  

●​ Interest has increased on customers looking at rooftop solar. Jeff has contacted known 
solar companies that have been asking about our new ordinance. He has forwarded them 
each a copy of the new application and the new ordinance. 

●​ Been working with legal counsel from KMEA regarding 2 new contracts which Evergy 
has requested from the city to address the new interconnection point at 6th and Orange 
and also the upgrades to their system that were required when more generation was 
added. 

●​ Hope to have final drafts of the contracts to present to the council at the first meeting in 
October. 

●​ Finishing up with the summer season by patching 11th St, Lawrence St and Washington. 
●​ Chip seal projects are done including the golf course. Bettis will return to do the final 

sweep before Maple Leaf. 
●​ 8th and High intersection is planned to be completed October 6. 
●​ The Fall city wide clean-up is October 11. 
●​ Jackson Pool still needs to come back to finish items that were on the Spring list. 
●​ Chlorine levels had dropped in the west water tower so the tower was drained. 
●​ Mattie’s last day in the public works office was September 5. She was an intricate part of 

the inner workings of the public works office. She was a valued team member and will be 
greatly missed. 

Next meeting will be 10/09/2025 at 9:00am, Public Works Conference Room   
     
5.​ Strategic Planning-Scott Lauridsen/Julie Constantinescu    

Next meeting TBD at 2:00pm, second floor of City Hall 
Mayor Simoneau would like this committee to plan on updating the employee policy manual.  
 

6.​ Lake Advisory Committee-Julie Constantinescu/Jay King 
BG Consultants presented 3 different options based on the state's feedback. One was to repair 
the spillway, raising the current lake up two feet wouldn’t require anything additional. If any 
height was added to the dam, it would fall under state jurisdiction. Discussed doing nothing on 
the frisbee golf course, or trying to get donations to add concrete to each tee box area. Also 
discussed a community work day at the lake towards the end of October.  
Next meeting will be 10/07/2025 at 6:00pm, Community Center 
 

7.​ Communications Advisory Board-Susan Pitts 
Next meeting will be 9/19/2025 at 2:00pm   

 

I.​ City Administrator and Staff Comments  
 

J.​ Council & Mayor Comments       
Mayor Simoneau thanked Lynn for dealing with the communications for the city, and for the setup 
at the community center.   



Lynn thanked the council for her time with the city.  
 

K.​ Executive Session    
Cory Venable moved and Julie Constantinescu seconded to go into executive session with the Council, 
the Mayor, and City Attorney Shaye Downing, for the purpose of non-elected personnel for attorney 
client privilege for 22 minutes, from 7:18pm until 7:40. Motion passes with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no.  
 
Mayor Simoneau called the meeting back to order at 7:40pm.    
 

L.​ Adjourn 
Scott Lauridsen moved and Julie Constantinescu seconded to adjourn the regular meeting. Motion 
passes 4-0. Time: 7:40 p.m. 

Attest: 
 
_________________________________​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​  

Amara M. Packard  
City Clerk 











































































Domestic Violence Awareness Month 2025 Proclamation 

Baldwin City Council 

 

 

WHEREAS, in the United States, 10 to 12 million adults experience domestic violence annually, 

with an average of 20 people every minute experiencing these heinous acts. 

 

WHEREAS, in the state of Kansas, one domestic violence incident occurs every 23 minutes, 

and one domestic violence murder occurs every 11 days, with one domestic violence arrest 

made every 46 minutes.  

 

WHEREAS, the impact of domestic violence is felt not only by individuals and families but also 

by communities and a nation as a whole; 

 

WHEREAS, Baldwin City joins with others across the state of Kansas and nationwide in 

supporting domestic violence victims and survivors, the advocates and organizations who serve 

them, and holding offenders accountable in our community;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, __________________, Mayor of Baldwin City, Kansas, do hereby 

proclaim October 2025 as  

 

              “Domestic Violence Awareness Month” 

 

And in recognition of the critical work being done by domestic violence advocates and allies in 

service of the survivors and the victims they serve, I encourage all citizens to actively engage in 

the scheduled activities and events sponsored by The Willow Domestic Violence Center and 

other organizations working toward the eradication of domestic violence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(Published in the The Lawrence Journal-World on the ________ day of _________, 2025) 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  1520 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, 

KANSAS ESTABLISHING A REINVESTMENT HOUSING INCENTIVE DISTRICT 

WITHIN THE CITY AND ADOPTING A PLAN FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

HOUSING AND PUBLIC FACILITIES IN SUCH DISTRICT, AND MAKING CERTAIN 

FINDINGS IN CONJUNCTION THEREWITH THE MAPLEWOOD PLACE 

REINVESTMENT HOUSING INCENTIVE DISTRICT  

 

WHEREAS, K.S.A. 12-5241 et seq. (the “Act) authorizes any City to designate a reinvestment 

housing incentive district within such city; and 

 

WHEREAS, prior to such designation the governing body of such city shall conduct a housing 

needs analysis to determine what, if any, housing needs exist within its community; and 

 

WHEREAS, after conducting such analysis, the governing body of such city may adopt a 

resolution making certain findings regarding the establishment of a Reinvestment housing 

incentive district and providing the legal description of property to be contained therein, and  

 

WHEREAS, after publishing such resolution, the governing body of such city shall send a copy 

thereof to the Secretary of Commerce of the State (the “Secretary”) requesting that the Secretary 

agree with the finding contained in such resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, if the Secretary agrees with such findings, such city may proceed with the 

establishment of Reinvestment housing incentive district within such city and adopt a plan for the 

development of housing and public facilities in the proposed district; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City conducted a Housing Needs Analysis dated January 

28, 2022 (the “Analysis”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City adopted Resolution No. 2025-11 on March 18, 2025 

which made certain findings relating to the need for financial incentives for the construction of 

quality housing within the City, declared it advisable to establish a Reinvestment Housing 

Incentive District pursuant to the Act and authorized the submission of such Resolution and a 

Housing Needs Analysis to the Kansas Department of Commerce in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, (“Resolution No. 1”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Secretary of the Kansas Department of Commerce, pursuant to a letter dated 

April 3, 2025, authorized the City to proceed with the establishment of a RHID pursuant to the Act 

(the “District”), to be hereafter called the Maplewood Place Reinvestment Housing Incentive 

District; and 

 



 

 2 

WHEREAS, the City has caused to be prepared a plan for the development or redevelopment of 

housing and public facilities in the proposed District in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

(the Plan); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Plan includes: 

 

1. The legal description and map required by subsection (a) of K.S.A. 12-5244; 

2. The existing assessed valuation of the real estate in the proposed District listing the land 

and improvement values separately ($27,495.00 for land, and $0.00 on improvements); 

3. A list of the names and addresses of the owners of record of all real estate parcels within 

the proposed District; 

4. A description of the housing and public facilities project or projects that are proposed to be 

constructed or improved in the District, and the location thereof; 

5. A listing of the names, addresses and specific interests in real estate in the proposed District 

of the developers responsible for development of the housing and public facilities in the 

proposed District; 

6. The contractual assurances, if any, the Governing Body has received from such developer 

or developers, guaranteeing the financial feasibility of specific housing tax incentive 

projects in the proposed District; 

7. A comprehensive analysis of the feasibility of providing housing tax incentives in the 

proposed District as provided in the Act, which shows that the public benefits derived from 

such District will exceed the costs and that the income therefrom, together with all public 

and private sources of funding, will be sufficient to pay for the public improvements that 

may be undertaken in such District.  If other sources of public or private funds are to be 

used to finance the improvements, they shall be identified in the analysis; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City has heretofore adopted Resolution No. 2025-19 

dated September 2, 2025, which made a finding that the City is considering the establishment of 

the proposed District and adopting the proposed Plan pursuant to the Act, set forth the boundaries 

of the proposed District, provides a summary of the proposed Plan, called a public hearing 

concerning the establishment of the proposed District for October 7, 2025 and provided for notice 

of such hearing as provided in the Act; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City published a copy of Resolution No. 2025-19 in the 

City’s Official Newspaper on September 25, 2025 giving statutory notice of the public hearing; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on October 7, 2025 after due published and delivered 

notice in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon and considering the information and public comments received at the public 

hearing, the governing body of the City hereby deems it advisable to make certain findings to 

establish the proposed District and to adopt the proposed Plan. 

 



 

 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS: 

 

Section 1.  Findings.  The Governing Body hereby finds that due notice of the public 

hearing conducted October 7, 2025 was made in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Section 2.  Creation of Reinvestment Housing Incentive District.  A Reinvestment 

Housing Incentive District is hereby created within the City in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act, which shall consist of the following described real property in the Development within 

the City of Baldwin City, Douglas County, Kansas:: 

 

Lots 1, 2, 4, & 5 of the Elwood Addition to the City of Baldwin City, Douglas County, 

Kansas. A Replat of a portion of the Palmyra Townsite to Douglas County, Kansas 

located in the Southwest Quarter of Sec 34, T-14-S, R-20-E, Douglas County, Kansas.  

 

The boundaries of the District do not contain any property not referenced in Resolution 

No. 2025-19, which provided notice of public hearing on the creation of the District and adoption 

of the Plan. 

 

Section 3.  Approval of Development Plan.  The Plan for the development or 

redevelopment of housing and public facilities in the District, as presented to the Governing Body 

this date, is hereby approved. 

 

Section 4.  Adverse Effect on Other Governmental Units.  If, within 30 days following 

the conclusion of the public hearing on October 7, 2025, any of the following occurs, the 

Governing Body shall take action to repeal this Ordinance: 

 

a. The Board of Education of U.S.D. 348 determines by resolution that the District will 

have an adverse effect on such school district; or 

b. The Board of County Commissioners of Douglas County, Kansas, determines by 

resolution that the District will have an adverse effect on such county.   

 

As of this date, the City has not received a copy of any such resolution and is not aware of the 

adoption of any such resolution by the governing body of Douglas County or U.S.D. 348. 

 

Section 5.  Reimbursement.  The Act authorizes the City to reimburse the Developer for 

all or a portion of the costs of implementing the Plan through the use of property tax increments 

allocated to the City under provisions of the Act.  Further, the City finds that vertical construction 

costs are eligible costs pursuant to K.S.A. 12-5249(a)(12)(A), as the infrastructure, including 

streets, sewer, water and utilities, has been existence for at least 10 years.  Pursuant to 

K.S.A. 12-5249(a)(12)(A), it is intended that revenues from the District will be used, primarily or 

exclusively, to reimburse the costs of the housing facilities because: 

 

• The proposed housing facilities financed with District revenues will be exclusively 

for residential use; 



 

 4 

• The District is an “existing lot” to the extent that it is comprised of a single existing 

tax parcel; and 

• The infrastructure, including streets, sewer, water, and utilities, has been in 

existence for at least 10 years. 

 

Section 6.  Further Action.  The Mayor, City Clerk and other officials and employees of 

the City, including the City Attorney, are hereby further authorized and directed to take such other 

actions as may be appropriate to accomplish the purposes of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its passage by the 

Governing Body of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas and publication of this Ordinance one time 

in the official City newspaper. 

 

PASSED by the City Commission and signed by the Mayor this 7th day of October, 2025. 

 

City of Baldwin City, Kansas 

 

        

Casey Simoneau, Mayor 

 

        

Amara Packard, City Clerk 

 

 

 



Published in Lawrence Journal World on the _____ day of ______, ____ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1519 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A COMMERCIAL KITCHEN WITHIN THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS. 
 

WHEREAS, application has been made by Brad Tyler and Jessica Tyler, requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

establishment of a Commercial Kitchen located on the property at 104 10th Street, Baldwin City, Kansas; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Baldwin City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing following published notification in 

accordance with K.S.A. 12-741, et. seq., as amended, on September 9, 2025; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Baldwin City Planning Commission has recommended that the City Council of the City of Baldwin City, 

Kansas, to approve the Conditional Use Permit to allow the establishment of a Commercial Kitchen on property at 104 10th 

Street, Baldwin City, Kansas, be approved subject to certain conditions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. SUBJECT REAL ESTATE.  The following described real estate (the “Subject Real Estate”) is hereby 

generally described as the south One-half of Lots Sixty-five (65), Sixty-six (66), and Sixty-seven (67) on 

Ames Street in the City of Baldwin City, Douglas County, Kansas and addressed as 104 10th Street. 

 

SECTION 2. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  A Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) for the Subject Real Estate is 

hereby approved in accordance with the CUP application. 

 

SECTION 3. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The CUP is and shall be expressly subject to the following 

conditions of approval: 

 

1. Strict compliance with all applicable zoning and use regulations not modified by the CUP 

 

2. Any failure to comply with the CUP or other applicable zoning and use regulations following notice from the City 

specifying such failure of compliance shall result in revocation of the CUP and all uses permitted by the CUP shall 

cease immediately. 

 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE.  This Ordinance shall take effect on its passage and upon its 

publication as required by law. 

 

Passed by the City Council on _______ day of _________, 2025. 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Casey Simoneau, Mayor           

 

 

ATTEST:  __________________________________ 

      Amara Packard, City Clerk 


	B. 10.07.2025 Agenda.docx.pdf
	A.  Call to Order-Mayor Casey Simoneau 
	B.  Approval of Agenda 
	D.  Public Comment: 
	 
	E.  Special Reports or Presentations ​ 
	F.  Old Business 
	G.  New Business 
	L.  Adjourn 
	 

	C.1. Minutes 8.19.2025  (2).docx.pdf
	C.2. Scheduled Claims List.pdf
	E. DVAM Proclamation Baldwin City KS_October 2025.pdf
	F.1. Ord 1520 Baldwin City RHID - Final Ordinance.pdf
	G.1. 104 10th St  - Conditional Use for Comm Kitchen.pdf

